
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
May 1, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 3, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-05, Adopting Water Rates for 


FY 2014-15 and Analysis of protests received (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
B. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-07, Adopting the FY 2014-15 


Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Est. time 15 min.)  
 
C. Discussion/Action re FY 2013-14 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
D. Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Re-Funding (Est. time 20 min) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-08, Ordering an Election to be Held and 


Requesting Consolidation with the November 4, 2014 General District Election 
(Est. time 10 min.) 


 
F. Discussion/Action re Extending Ferrellgas Lease (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re PERS Unfunded Liability (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
H. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-09, Authorizing the General Manager to 


execute a sales contract for District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville, 
with the Russian River Recreation and Park District (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
April 3, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Rich Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 6, 2014 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any.  (There was none.) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 


 1







 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget.  The GM introduced this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
Comments were made by legal counsel.  No action was taken.  This item was 
calendared for the May Board meeting.   


 
B. (7:15 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Electrical Power Options.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to go forward with the Clean Start option.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0.   


 
C. (7:30 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-06, Approving the Second 


Amendment to the CIP 2014 Contract with Coastland Engineering.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  The title of Resolution 14-
06 was corrected to note that it was the Second Amendment (not the First Amendment).  
Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 14-06 as corrected, Approving a 
Second Amendment to the Agreement for Engineering Services for FY 2014 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) with Coastland Engineering Inc. (Coastland) and 
Authorizing the General Manager to Sign.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
D. (7:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Waiving the Capacity Charge and Connection 


Fees for the Parcel at 18072 Hwy. 116, APN 072-220-027.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to waive the 
capacity charge and connection fees under a legal agreement.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Director Lipinski proposed that the motion be amended to reflect that the 
capacity charge and connection fees would be waived in return for foregoing similar 
construction costs in CIP 2015.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded the motion as amended.  
Motion carried 5-0.  


 
 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:55 p.m.) 


 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall (Drought) 
5. 2014 CIP / 2015 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Tank Cleaning 
9. North Coast Regional Board Meeting on Russian River Total Pathogen maximum Daily 


Load (TMDL) 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:17 p.m.) 


 
Director Holmer announced that he attended a California Environmental Health Association 
(CEHA) meeting re onsite waste disposal methods. 
 
Director Lipinski shared the SCWA newsletter he received with SCWA's Prop. 218 notice. 
 


 2







 3


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:22 p.m.) 
 
At 8:22 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:23 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:37 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:38 p.m.) 
 
1. Property sale 
2. USDA financing 
3. Rate hearing 
4. Budget 
5. Actual vs. Budgeted report - 3Q 
6. PERS unfunded liability 
7. State followup to sewer spill (GM report) 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:55 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:17 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:22 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:38 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 WATER RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


A.  Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (FY15) Water 
Rates; 
B.  Approve Resolution 14-05 which establishes water rates for FY15, increasing 
the Base Rate, Water Usage Charge, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges by 3%. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Adopts water rates that will increase water sales revenues by 
approximately $62,000 to fund District operations and capital programs in FY15.    
 
DISCUSSION: 


Sweetwater Springs Water District’s current financial condition is good with one 
exception – lack of sustainable funding for ongoing capital improvements.   The District 
has adequate revenues to fund operations, and debt repayment is covered mostly by the 
annual Flat Charge that appears on the property tax bill and by the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC).  In recent years, after payment of all other expenses, the 
District has had approximately $250,000 in revenues from water rates to contribute 
towards capital expenses.  This amount is too small to fund the capital programs needed 
by the District to bring its infrastructure up to standard.  The District has had funding 
support for its capital projects from the Russian River Redevelopment Committee 
(RRROC) and the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment Agency but that source 
of support has ended and capital projects are now funded solely by the District.     


There’s no question that the District’s infrastructure is substandard. Even with the capital 
programs of the past several years, the District averages approximately 150 leaks per 
year (down from over 300 prior to the recent startup of capital improvements), 26% 
system losses, and requires many service interruptions to repair leaks.  Most of the 
facilities inherited by Sweetwater Springs Water District when it took over Citizen’s 
Utilities in 1992 were constructed in a haphazard manner and all of it needs replacing, 
except that replaced or constructed in the last twenty years.  The District’s 2014-19 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a “catch-up” CIP which aims to bring the District’s 
water system up to an acceptable standard, as measured by water quality, system leaks, 
system losses, and fire protection.  Beyond the 2014-19 CIP, additional capital expenses 







Approval of FY15 Water Rates  2  
May 1, 2014 


will be needed to continue the catch up and to maintain the water system to an 
acceptable standard.     


To address this situation, in 2011 the Board directed Staff to investigate how to get 
to a funding level that will provide for a sustainable CIP.  Sustainable CIP funding is 
defined as at least $500,000 in a net capital funding (net operating funds minus debt 
payments not are not covered by the capital debt reduction charge revenue and the 
annual assessment) that can be transferred to the Capital Program.       
 
The proposed 3% rate increase being considered would follow the current rate 
structure which is based on the 2007 Rate Study.  That study recommended annual 
increases of up to 4% to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and increases to 
the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  In 2011 several alternatives were 
investigated based on a financial planning model that forecast District finances 
through FY 2020.  That investigation and accompanying Board meetings 
recommended a series of relatively small (3%) annual increases to the Base Rate 
and Water Usage Charges.  The analysis showed that nine years of 3% increases 
would bring Capital Program funding to the target sustainable level.  The 
recommended FY15 3% increase will be the 4th year of 3% increases to those 
charges.   
 
The CDRC was put in place to cover District capital debt not covered by the Flat 
Charge and has not been fully raised to cover the debt costs of the 2008 Private 
Placement Loan (annual payments of $404,314 versus CDRC revenue of 
approximately $238,000 in FY13).  In FY14 (last year) after discussion and 
recommendation by the Budget Committee, the Board has agreed to keep CDRC 
increases equal to the Base Rate Charge increase (3%) instead of an earlier plan to 
increase it at a rate to match debt payments in 3 years which would have meant 
approximately 20% increases per year.   The 3% increase for the CDRC is continued 
for FY15. 
 
Table 1 shows the proposed Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges for various customer classes and tiers.    Table 2 shows the effects of the 
proposed 3% rate increase on typical District water customers based on the various 
rate classes and median 90th percentile water use for those classes.  The table shows 
the effect on the FY15 water bills ($2.25 bimonthly for median single family 
residential).  







Approval of FY15 Water Rates  3  
May 1, 2014 


 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2014-15 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate 
 $    


1.30   $    2.60   $    3.85   $    5.60    


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter size  $       56.25  8 20 80 >80 $10.30 


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter 
multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units  $       87.19  12.4 31 124 >124  $             15.97 


3 units  $     118.13  16.8 42 168 >168  $             21.63 


4 units  $     149.06  21.2 53 212 >212  $             27.30 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit multiplier. 


Meter Size (in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $       56.25  8 20 80 >80 $10.30 


1  $     140.63  20 50 200 >200  $             25.75 


1.5  $     281.25  40 100 400 >400  $             51.50 


2  $     450.00  64 160 640 >640  $             82.40 


 
Table 2.  3% Water Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class  (100 cubic feet (Units), 


FY14-15 


  
Single Family 
Residential 


Multi-Family 
Residential, 2 Units Commercial 5/8 Meter 


Number of Accounts 3092 252 132 
  Median 90% Median 90% Median 90% 
Median Water Use 7 22 12 32 15 82 
Median Bill Current  $ 73.40   $ 112.15  $ 115.21  $ 165.96  $ 92.15   $ 340.55 
Median Bill Proposed  $ 75.65   $ 115.85  $ 118.75  $ 171.48  $ 95.15   $ 350.35 
Bimonthly Difference  $ 2.25   $ 3.70  $ 3.55  $ 5.52  $ 3.00   $ 9.80 


% Increase 3.1% 3.3% 3.1% 3.3% 3.3% 2.9%


 







Approval of FY15 Water Rates  4  
May 1, 2014 


Observations: 
 


 The proposed water rates are rounded to the nearest 5 cents (this makes 
calculations and change making easier for staff).  That slightly increases the 
Tier 1, Tier 2 and Tier 3 charges and slightly decreases the Tier 4 and Base 
Rate charges.   


 
Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Notice for proposed water rate increases were mailed to all property owners by 
March 17, 2014. 3,213 notices were mailed.  The Notice provided for an increase to 
the Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction Charges of up to 3% for FY 
2014 and included the proposed rate schedules and a protest form.   At the time of 
this agenda report writing (April 24, 2014), 183 protests had been received.  Below 
are specific comments received with the protest votes: 
  
As a summer resident and a short one at that, I object strongly paying even more for my minimal 
use! 
 
It is an outrage, every year the base price goes up, the service is the same.  We at the end of the 
street get water that is often black or tinted.  We live hear 21 years, we save intensely and yet the 
prices go up and up. 
 
Property located at xxxx Rio Nido is a summer cottage, used only June thru September.  I still am 
forced to pay a base rate for 8 month per year, even though no water is turned on during those 
months.  I currently pay $32.33/month for 8 months and receive nothing! 
 
This is not a fair vote method.  How about placing a check box stating “____ I agree to the 
proposed rate increase?”  Let’s see if 51% agree to increase rates.  I’d like to see an audit of time, 
materials and salary of all involved in the operation of Sweetwater Springs Water District, along 
with any grants or government subsidies and account received.  Where is that website? 
 
I’m retired and am living (surviving) on a small amount of money as are so many elders.  Right 
now I pay all bill for little water!  You are great people doing a good job! But please consider 
giving us oldsters a break!  No No No No Increase. 
 
The direct charge for Sweetwater Springs Imp. On property taxes is $198.00. I’m a widow, 93 
years of age trying to manage all these expenses.  Enough is enough. 
 
No allowance made for senior citizens or those who are only intermittent residents and are 
required to may monthly fees even though no water is provided/used. 
 
I have a new fire tax of $115. What next? 
 
I am writing to formally register my protest against the proposed water rate increases. While I 
agree that the water system certainly needs upgrades and repairs to the infrastructure I don’t 
believe it should be only the customers responsibility to bear that cost in their water bills.  We 







Approval of FY15 Water Rates  5  
May 1, 2014 


pay very high property taxes and the water district receives funds from those taxes.  (much more 
follows, ed) 
 
   
 








Resolution No. 14-05 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING WATER RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2014-2015 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the 2007 Rate Study conducted by Brelje and Race (“2007 Rate 
Study”) and other information provided to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
has evaluated the anticipated revenues and expenditures necessary to operate the 
District and cover the costs of providing water services to customers of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March of 2014 District staff sent formal notices of the public hearing on 
the proposed rate structure for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (FY15) in accordance with the 
requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the California Constitution, and has 
included other rate information on the District’s website; and   
 
WHEREAS, the formal notices advised ratepayers and property owners of the new 
proposed rate structure and the process for submitting protests to said rate structure to 
the District, in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the 
California Constitution; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors conducted a public hearing on May 1, 2014  
to hear public testimony on the proposed water rate structure for FY15, and heard all 
testimony regarding the proposed water rates and accepted all related comments and 
protests for FY15; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing the District Clerk tabulated the 
number of protests and reported that there was not a majority protest of the proposed 
water rate structure for FY15; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony provided at the time of the public 
hearing on this matter, the Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 


1.  The proposed rate increases set forth in Exhibit “A” follow the 
recommendations of the 2007 Rate Study that was commissioned by the District 
Board of Directors as a basis for restructuring water rates commencing in May 
2009. 
 
2.  Pursuant to the analysis and recommendations contained in the 2007 Rate 
Study, the proposed water rates are directly related to the District’s actual cost of 
providing water service and are not levied for general revenue purposes. 
 
3.  Based on the 2007 Rate Study, the proposed water rates needed to cover 
those costs of operation, repair, and maintenance costs of the District's water 
system are neither excessive nor discriminatory. 
 







Resolution 14-05, FY 2014-2015 Water Rates 2 
May 1, 2014 
 


4.  Proper notice of the proposed rate structure and notice of a public hearing on 
the matter has been given to all ratepayers and owners of identified parcels 
within the District, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
5.  The proposed water rates, as described in Exhibit "A", attached, were not 
protested by a majority of the persons eligible to protest said rate structure.  


 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following: 
 
Section 1. Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  
Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2014, the bi-monthly Base Rate, Water 
Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges shall be as shown in Table 1 of 
Exhibit “A”, attached. 


Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase or 
this Resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
the Resolution.  The District Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 1, 
2014, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 14-05, FY 2014-2015 Water Rates 3 
May 1, 2014 
 
Exhibit A 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and 


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 


Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2014 
 
The rates indicated below shall be effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 
2014, and these fees, rates and charges shall supercede and replace those in 
Resolution 13-10.   
 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2014-15 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate 
 $    


1.30  
 $    


2.60   $    3.85   $    5.60    


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size  $       56.25  8 20 80 >80 $ 10.30 


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; no 
meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units  $       87.19  12.4 31 124 >124  $ 15.97 


3 units  $     118.13  16.8 42 168 >168  $ 21.63 


4 units  $     149.06  21.2 53 212 >212  $ 27.30 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $       56.25  8 20 80 >80 $ 10.30 


1  $     140.63  20 50 200 >200  $ 25.75 


1.5  $     281.25  40 100 400 >400  $ 51.50 


2  $     450.00  64 160 640 >640   $ 82.40  


 







Resolution 14-05, FY 2014-2015 Water Rates 4 
May 1, 2014 
 
 
USER CLASSIFICATIONS. For the purposes of assessing water 
charges provided for in this exhibit, user classifications shall be as 
follows: 
1. Residential Single Family: Applicable to all accounts serving one 
detached dwelling unit. 
2. Residential Multiple Family: Applicable to all accounts serving two or more 
living units, as defined by District Policy 3010.70. 
3. Commercial and Public: Applicable, without regard to meter size, to all 
accounts serving mercantile buildings, motels and other short term lodging 
establishments, office buildings, institutional buildings, parks, schools, churches, 
and other commercial and public agency establishments. 





		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction Charge






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  A. Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2014-


2015 (FY15) Budget;  
B.  Approve Resolution 14-07 which approves the FY15 
Budget 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The FY14 Budget includes FY15 expenses of $3.6 million to be paid 
for by revenues of $3.0 million plus projected use of reserves of $600,000 in FY15.  The 
Budget also includes approximately $800,000 in funds expected to be obligated in FY15 
for the FY16 Capital Improvement Program through the award of the construction 
contract, but expended in FY16.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY15 Budget agenda report comes with several attachments: 


 
 Resolution 14-07 which approves the FY15 Budget 
 Exhibit A. FY15 Budget Report which includes Attachment A. FY15 Detailed 


Budget which is the line item budget document with complete budget detail.   
 
The Draft FY15 Budget was first presented and discussed at the March Board Meeting 
with a followup discussion at the April Board Meeting.  The FY15 Budget came with 
several assumptions/results:  
 


 Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges are increased by 
3%. 


 Flat water sales – recent sales have been increasing but the drought water 
conservation effort may result in reduced water sales.  


 Water sales revenue projection a 3% increase over the FY14 End of Year 
projected amount. 







Approval of FY15 Budget  2  
May 1, 2014 


 Salaries are increased to match the Union Memorandum of Understanding and 
contracts for nonrepresented employees.  The General Manager is funded at 70% 
to reflect partial service retirement. 


 The Budget includes prefunding retired employee health costs.     
 Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and are 


budgeted to be approximately $20,000 less than FY14 Budgeted.      
 Fixed Asset Expenditures have increased substantially to account for the purchase 


of a new truck.  Tanks and Facilities includes expenses for a liner for the Park 
Avenue Tank and a chlorination system for Monte Rio Treatment Plant.       


 
The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is $500,000 which is a 
reflection of the expected higher starting point for this coming fiscal year, 3% water rate 
increase, and projected flat sales. 
 
With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between FY15 and FY14 are less 
meaningful because completely different capital projects are undertaken from year to 
year.  The FY15 Budget includes the FY 2015 CIP which is fully funded by the District.   


 
The FY 2016 CIP is also included in this budget because the project will be designed this 
winter and construction funds for this project will likely be obligated in May or June 
2015, during this budget year.  The construction expense of the FY 2016 CIP is not 
included in Figure 1 of the Budget report because only a small fraction of the FY 2016 
CIP expenses will be expended in FY15 (design costs).  
 
District Reserves 
 
The FY15 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 2009:   
 


 Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the 
start of each fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for dealing with 
economic uncertainty, and emergencies and disaster-related expenses.   


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The FY15 Budget shows a Policy Reserve of $1,150,528 and $1,737,530 in Reserves 
Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.  Approximately $800,000 of the Reserves 
Above Policy are obligated for construction of the FY16 CIP so actual end of year 
reserves on hand will be approximately $2.5 million.   
   
In summary, the FY15 Budget shows a funding plan will allow the District to accomplish 
its mission of providing good quality water to District customers, fund a major capital 
improvement project, and end the year in good financial shape.   








Resolution No. 14-07 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2014-15 OPERATING 


AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District hereby adopts the attached FY 2014-15 Operating and Capital Improvement 
Budget and authorizes the General Manager to submit the attached budget to the 
Sonoma County Auditor. 
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on May 1, 2014, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 








Exhibit A 


  
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2014-15 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Richard Holmer, President 
Tim Lipinski, Vice President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator 
Victoria Wikle  


Gaylord Schaap 
 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 


 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2014-15 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2014-2014 (FY15) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.6 million and capital improvement expenses of $3.2 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds are enhanced by 
approximately $600,000 from District Reserves for capital improvements.   These figures 
do not include expenses or sources of funds for construction of the 2016 CIP for which 
the construction contract will be awarded in FY15 but the funds not expended until FY16 
(approximately $800,000). 
 


Figure 1. FY 2015 Expenses
Total = $3.6 Million


(does not include FY16 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
30%


Salary and Benefits
28%


Debt Repayment
27%


Services and Supplies
15%


Figure 2.  FY15 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $3.6 Million


$3.0 Million Revenues + $600,000 Reserves


Base Rate Charge
36%


Water Usage Charge
18%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
20%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
2%


Reserves
17%


 2 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY15 Budget which is described and shown in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY15 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  
The FY15 Budget includes the fourth year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the second year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.     


TABLE 1.  FY
 


REVENUE


1


 2014-15 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*


 FY13-14 
BUDGET  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets 


OPERATING REVENUE


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 238,368 245,800         253,947         8,147           


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,332,100       1,393,127       61,027         


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 1,926,866 675,100         725,894         50,794         


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,007,200       2,119,021       111,821       


otal OPERATING REVENUE 2,165,234 2,253,000 2,372,967 119,967       


otal NON-OPERATING REVENUE 106,274 93,400 106,850 13,450         


e 2,271,508 2,346,400 2,479,817 133,417       


OPERATING EXPENSES


794,841 794,588 794,790 202             


283,897 316,415 303,431 (12,984)        


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,738 1,111,003 1,098,221 (12,782)        


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 476,895 520,930 501,025 (19,905)        


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,555,633 1,631,933 1,599,246 (32,687)        


NG SURPLUS/DEFICIT $715,875 $714,467 $880,571 166,104$     


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,838 22,000 72,000 50,000         


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 260,000 675,800 793,947 118,147       


FICIT 440,037 16,667 14,625 (2,042)          


L BUDGET
SOURCES OF FUNDS
OTAL REVENUE 1,933,387 1,447,000 3,210,947 1,763,947    


OTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,086,633 1,091,314 1,043,317 (47,997)        


Total Capital Expenses 1,651,438            1,877,149       2,163,149       286,000       


OTAL EXPENSES 2,738,071 2,968,463 3,206,466 238,003       


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -804,684 -1,521,463 4,481
1,525,944    


ND FUND BALANCES (EOY)
District Policy 1,175,602            1,175,602       1,150,528       (25,074)        


serves EOY 4,371,989            3,502,993       2,888,057       (614,935)      


Total Benefits


Total Salary


2


3


4
5 T


6 T


7 Total Incom


8 EXPENSES
9


10
11
12


13


14


15 OPERATI


16
17


18 SURPLUS/DE


19 CAPITA
20 REVENUE/
21 T


22 EXPENSES
23 T


24
25 T


26
27
28 RESERVES A
29    Total 
30    TOTAL Re


 3 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


2014-15 Fiscal Year (FY15) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site and distributed 
through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 service laterals of varying 
lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is managed and its 
operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  The District has an 
aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and improving the capital 
infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, reduce system water 
losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The annual budget 
identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY15 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
fourth year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and the 
second year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   Most of the revenues for the FY15 Budget come from water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the fourth year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
FY 2015 CIP and FY 2016 CIP (Table 2):  The FY15 Capital Budget includes the 2015 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which is replacement of 5,800 ft of existing main 
and appurtenances on Old Monte Rio Road commencing at the Handy Andy Booster 
and proceeding westerly to the Highway 116 intersection, estimated to have a total cost 
of approximately $1,215,000 including design, inspection, construction management and 
construction costs.  Approximately $1.1 million of the total costs will occur in FY15.   
 
The FY15 Budget also includes the obligation for funding construction of the FY 2016 
CIP, which is replacement of approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services 
along Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane, and Memory Park Road in Rio Nido.  This 
expense is included in the FY15 Budget because design costs will start in autumn 2014 
and the construction contract would be obligated in May or June of the fiscal year.  
However, most of the expense will occur in FY16.  These are projects indentified in the 
District’s FY14-19 CIP and are needed improvements to the District’s distribution 
system. 
 


 4 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


District Reserve Policy:   A formal District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The Draft FY15 Budget projects that the 
District will have approximately $1.7 million in Reserves Above District Policy at the end 
of FY15, including the obligation for the FY16 CIP.  This means cash on hand in the 
Reserves Above District Policy will be approximately $2.5 Million at the end of FY15.   


 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY15 Budget include: 
 


 Water Sales will be flat in FY15 – our assumption is that a 3% rate increase will 
result in a 3% revenue increase in water sales.  


 Salaries are increased to match the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
and contracts for nonrepresented employees and includes the savings of the 
General Manager in partial retirement.  


 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is budgeted at 
$500,000 in FY15. 


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY15 Budget: 
 
The FY15 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges based on flat water 
sales.  Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 


 5 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to have almost no change which reflects a full 
year of the General Manager’s partial retirement and the District salary savings from 
that.   Benefits are budgeted to decrease approximately $13,000 because of a reduction 
in the amount paid for retiree health and a reduction in workers comp insurance costs.  
Salaries and Benefits are a major District expense – approximately 70% of the FY15 
Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $20,000 lower than the FY14 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and has been decreased to reflect the projected costs in FY14 which will likely be similar 
for FY15.   Governmental Fees are budgeted to remain flat in the coming fiscal year.  
Professional Services has decreased based on actual costs for legal services in FY14.  
Electricity is a big expense item and is expected to have an increase in FY15 ($10,000) 
but there is some uncertainty to this number because the District may be moving to a 
new provider (Sonoma Clean Power).   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures has been substantially increased to budget for the purchase 
of a new truck.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to replace 
the chlorination system for the Monte Rio System and a tank liner at the Park Avenue 
Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $794,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($500,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($253,947).   
 
The FY15 Capital Budget major expenses are the FY 2015 CIP (estimated cost 
$1,000,000) and FY 2016 CIP (estimated cost $900,000), described above and in 
Table 2. 
 
Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 27% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – $1.6 million in bonds that were approved to 
purchase the District and make needed capital improvements and refinanced last 
year.  Paid off in 2042.  Annual payment - $72,000.   


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY15 payment is $566,508, saving the 
District approximately $45,000 in the FY15 fiscal year.      


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-22.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.   


 
  
 


 6 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 7 


District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY15, District Policy Reserves are at $1,150,528 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $1,737,530.   This includes the obligation for the 
FY 2015 CIP, so actual cash on hand reserves at the end of FY15 will be approximately 
$2.5 million.   
 
The detailed FY15 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2014-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2015    


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly, 50 services. $1,240,000


  


2016  


 
Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $975,000


 2015-2016 Totals 2,215,000
 





		Board of Directors

		Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2014-15 Fiscal Year (FY15) Budget








ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


1


FY 2014-15 OPERATING BUDGET
 


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue
4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Char 238,368 245,800           246,550  253,947          8,147            3% rate increase on projected
4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,332,100       1,352,550 1,393,127       61,027          3% rate increase on projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 1,926,866 675,100          704,752 725,894          50,794          3% rate increase on projected


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,007,200       2,057,302 2,119,021       111,821        
Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,165,234 2,253,000 2,303,852 2,372,967 119,967        
NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 1,875 0 0 -                      -                   


1700 · Interest 16,882 7,500              7,000 7,500              -                   


1001 · CY Direct Charge Proceeds -1,198 -                      -                   
3600 · Construction New Services 5,859 5,000              5,000 5,000              -                   
3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 5,123 2,000              2,000 2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
73,558 75,400            97,550  88,350            12,950          Crystal $1361/mo


AT&T $6000/mo


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 1,742 1,000              2,000  1,500              500               
USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,433 2,500              2,500 2,500              -                   


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 106,274 93,400 125,080 106,850 13,450          


Total Income 2,271,508 2,346,400 2,428,932 2,479,817 133,417        


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 707,592 693,626 683,761          697,038          3,413            
5912 · Overtime 20,922 30,772 31,832            30,562            (210)             
5916 · On-Call Pay 29,485 33,090 29,178            33,090            -                   
5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,842 37,100 36,886 34,100$          (3,000)          


794,841 794,588 781,656 794,790 202               Total Salary


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


2


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending 165 0  -                      -                   
5920 · Retirement 117,363 115,563 126,817 121,115          5,552            
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer P 14,241 14,021 10,546 14,067            46                 
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLA 127,500 143,762 144,106 143,249          (513)             
5931 · Retiree health 2,724 17,324 17,324 7,000              (10,324)         funding CERBT in FY14


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 21,904 25,746 22,000 18,000            (7,746)          
10% increase over 2014 projected rates, 
reduced experience model


283,897 316,415 320,792 303,431 (12,984)         
Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,738 1,111,003 1,102,448 1,098,221 (12,782)         


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,688 1,800              1,800 1,800              -                   
Comcast -$81/month: 972
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 3,113 2,900              2,200 4,300              1,400            


Verizon $207/mo: $2484
Cell phone texting reimburse: $60X3 (-
$180)
Misc parts/holders: $200, adding $1,800 
for cells for all field staff


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 469 850                 400 560                 (290)             American Messaging $30/mo: $360
Misc. parts/batteries: $200


6040-T · Telephones 16,691 16,500            18,150 19,950            3,450            


Ans. Service: $100/mo: $1200
Phones: $1380/mo: $16560
Long distance $45/mo: $600
Added PacketFusion maint contract - 
$1450


21,961 22,050 22,550 26,610 4,560            


Insurances
6101 · Gen. Liability 20,711 21,000            25,413 27,000            6,000            


6102 · Auto/Equipment 12,657  14,000            5,170 5,200              (8,800)          
Increased due to anticipated purchase of
a new truck


33,368 35,000 30,583 32,200 (2,800)          


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 18,473 16,000            14,000 14,000            (2,000)          


6151 · Office Maintenance 3,990 4,600              5,200  4,050              (550)             


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
Moved PacketFusion maint. contract 
to Telephones
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = 
$2100/year 
Copy mach. maint - 800/yr
Call One - $400/yr
Misc / Other - $250


Total Insurances


Total Communications


Total Benefits


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


3


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


22,463 20,600 19,200 18,050 (2,550)          


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 6,852 7,850              8,000 8,000              150               


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = 
$2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $235/mo 
= $2880
Sunrise Garbage $1400
Sewer GVTP ($1100)


2,659 5,000              2,500 5,000              -                   SCADA Airtime $60.45/mo: $725
SCADA Consultant: $4,275


38,632 52,000            40,000 40,000            (12,000)         


41,254 45,000            50,000 42,000            (3,000)          1 well rehab


6143 · Generator Maintenance 3,097 3,200              3,200 3,200              -                   


92,494 113,050 103,700 98,200 (14,850)         


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 8,180 9,020              9,020 9,700              680               


USA $155
AWWA $420
CSDA $5000
CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 410 1,500              8,586  1,500              -                   Allowing $1,000 for remainder of FY14


6593 · Governmental Fees 22,874 20,650            23,000 20,500            (150)             Election costs: 1500, DPH: $19,000


31,464 31,170 40,606 31,700 530               


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 13,450  16,000            16,000 16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.48 X 12 
months) = $11,520
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .48 = $1,920
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .48 = $1,728
Other mail 


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


4


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


6430 · Printing Expense 5,430 8,450              6,500  7,500              (950)             


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 4,479 4,000              4,000 4,000              -                   


Supplies $3000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $40
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notice 636 700                 775 800                 100               


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $300
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 885 2,800              3,600 700                 (2,100)          


Antivirus softsware ($30X6) = $200
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $300


6579 · Furniture 0 500                 250 500                 -                   


24,880 32,450 31,125 29,500            (2,950)          


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 9,346 17,000            17,000 17,000            -                   


6880 · Tools and Equipment 3,439 6,000              6,000 6,500              500               Leak listener: $2500
6881 · Safety Equipment 404 1,500              1,000 1,000              (500)             


13,189 24,500 24,000 24,500 -                   


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 3,225 3,400              3,400 3,400              -                   Mission $65/week = $3380
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 10,776 13,000            13,000 13,000            -                   


6570 · Consultant Fees 1,953 3,300              3,300 3,300              -                   


IEDA $2000
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance 
work) $800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6590 · Engineering 0 -                      0 -                   


6610 · Legal 27,640 28,000            18,000 20,000            (8,000)          


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


5


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


6630 · Audit/Accounting 28,000 30,000            28,000  29,600            (400)             


ADP $45.82/2 weeks = $1191.32
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $7,950
Harbortouch $1100/mo = $13,200
E-check fees = $1200
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $2618


71,594 77,700 65,700 69,300 (8,400)          


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,345 3,300              2,000 2,000              (1,300)          Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000            27,000 27,675            675               2.5% rent increase


28,345 30,300 29,000 29,675 (625)             
Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,347 4,150              1,200  2,650              (1,500)          
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500, GM - $500


7201 · Vehicle Gas 26,801 26,500            23,000  25,000            (1,500)          


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,846 6,400              6,400 6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


33,994 37,050 30,600 34,050 (3,000)          


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,185 1,500              1,500 1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450
6021.3 · T-shirts 504 1,200              1,302  1,500              300               
6021.4 · Jackets 385 360                 240 240                 (120)             2 jackets


2,074 3,060 3,042 3,240 180               


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 97,781 90,000            98,500 100,000          10,000          New Provider?
7321 · Propane 3,288 4,000              4,000 4,000              -                   


101,069 94,000 102,500 104,000 10,000          


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 476,895 520,930 502,606 501,025 (19,905)         


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,555,633 1,631,933 1,605,054 1,599,246 (32,687)         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $715,875 $714,467 $823,878 $880,571 166,104$      


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8517 · Field/Office equipment 4,136 1,000                
8573 · Vehicles 0 -                      0 50,000            50,000          New vehicle


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


6


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 11,702 21,000            21,000 22,000            1,000            
Replace MIOX  chlorine system at 
MRTP -$12,000
Park Ave Tank Liner - $8.000


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 -                      -                   


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,838 22,000 21,000 72,000 50,000          


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 245,800 246,550 253,947 8,147            
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 220,000 390,000          500,000 500,000          110,000        
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000            15,000 15,000            -                   
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000            25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 260,000 675,800 786,550 793,947 118,147        


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 440,037 16,667 16,328 14,625 (2,042)          


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 18,388 27,000            9,952              27,000            -                   
Annual Assessment (County) 709,327 710,000          779,424          710,000          -                   
Prior Year Assessment 23,644 40,000            33,833            40,000            -                   
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 230,000          246,550          253,947          23,947          
Interest 24,165 25,000            19,004            25,000            -                   
CDC Grants, CIP 2013 912,863 -                  -                  -                   


Funds from Reserves  540,000          1,630,000       $975,000 for FY16 CIP
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 220,000 390,000          500,000          500,000          110,000        
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000 25,000            25,000            25,000            -                   
TOTAL REVENUE 1,933,387 1,447,000 2,153,763 3,210,947 1,763,947     


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 682,448 687,000          72,495            72,495            (614,505)       
Cap One Revenue Bond 583,947          566,508          566,508        
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300          170,172 170,300          -                   
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014          234,014          234,014          -                   
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,086,633 1,091,314 1,060,628 1,043,317 (47,997)         


CIP IV-B, Project 2 -11,060 -                   -                   
2013 CIP  -                  -                  -                   
2013 CIP Carryover 1,451,921  -                  -                   


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


7


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


2014 CIP Design and Construction Mgmgt 126,626 138,036          138,000          (138,036)       


2014 CIP Construction 24,940
835,964          


841,000          -                      


2015 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 31,470 178,149          75,000            103,149          


2015 CIP Construction 700,000          -                  1,060,000       360,000        based on recent cost estimate


2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 175,000          
Canyon 1 design expenses in 2015 
($75,000) and CM in 2016


2016 CIP Construction 800,000          Canyon 1
In-House Construction Projects 27,541 25,000            20,000            25,000            -                   


Total Capital Expenses 1,651,438            1,877,149       1,074,000       2,163,149       286,000        
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,738,071 2,968,463 2,134,628 3,206,466 238,003        


End of FY15 Accrual Expenses 2,331,466
Total Expenses minus 2016 CIP 
Construction and 2016 CIP CM


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -804,684 -1,521,463 19,135 4,481 1,525,944     


RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT RESERVES  


244,790               244,790          239,887          239,887          
(4,903)          


Revised Title and calculation 
per Ord 41


407,983               407,984          399,812          399,812          
(8,173)          


Combined per Ord 41


272,829               272,829          260,829          260,829          
(11,999)         


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000          250,000          250,000          -                   
   Total District Policy 1,175,602            1,175,602       1,150,528       1,150,528       (25,074)         


   TOTAL Reserves EOY 4,371,989            3,502,993       3,745,006       2,888,057       (614,935)       Sum of District Funds below
   Reserves Above (below) Policy 3,196,387            2,327,391       2,594,478       1,737,530       (589,861)       


   ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,763,057       
Total Reserves Plus Expected 
2016 CIP actual 2016 expenses


   Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,612,530       


Reserves Above Policy Plus 
Expected 2016 CIP actual 2016 
expenses


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF (776401) 2,232,623            1,725,893       1,997,001       1,144,195       (581,698)       


OPERATING RESERVE (776039 396,970               407,984          407,645          405,942          (2,042)          


OPERATIONS (776013) 630,624               244,790          244,790          244,790          -                   


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 
(15% of Operating Expenses
Operating Reserve (25% of Operating 
Expenses)
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


4/24/2014







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


8


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


113,106               113,106          118,106          118,106          
5,000            


BUILDING (776021) 135,850               150,850          150,850          165,850          15,000          


LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 689,303               687,000       656,442          639,003          (47,997)         


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 173,512               173,370       170,172          170,172          (3,198)          


171,370         171,370     171,370     171,370          


-                   
Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(776211)


4/24/2014





		Combined






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 31 
(75%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This 
comprises 75% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and 
expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
Staff is pleased (and somewhat surprised) to report that 3Q revenues and 
expenses were unremarkable.  Revenues are at 76.79% of budget, and expenses 
at 74.09% of budget.  The District is on track with budget, and there were no 
unusual expenses to note.  A very clean quarter.   
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is not in balance because revenues tend to lag 
and 2014 CIP expenses are paid when billed and not on any regular schedule.  
The work for the 2014 CIP was mostly done by the end of the quarter but billing 
by the contractor is lagging.   Piazza Construction still hasn’t billed us for the Mill 
Street Emergency Project, as well.  
 
Revenue from the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and transfers to in-
house construction won’t be happening until 4th quarter.        
 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru March 31, 2014  2 
May 1, 2014 


FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd  
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter 
(from which the Table 3 actuals come).   
 
Table 3 shows the changes to our presentation of funds and reserves that have 
been discussed in this budget process.  The State and Federal loan funds have 
been included in the presentation of District funds in Table 3.  There is not much 
of a difference in total reserves because those funds are fairly depleted at this 
time of the fiscal year.  We still owe quite a bit on the 2014 CIP and have spent 
very little on the budgeted 2015 CIP.   
 








FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,006,057 1,332,100 -326,043 75.52%
4031.11· Current Charges 476,331 675,100 -198,770 70.56%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 183,437 245,800 -62,363 74.63%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 57,391 0 57,391 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,723,215 2,253,000 -529,785 76.49% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,723,215 2,253,000 -529,785 76.49%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 5,209 7,500 -2,291 69.45% Reflects interest earnings thru 3Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 2,883 5,000 -2,117 57.66%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 0 2,000 -2,000 0.0%


4032 · Rent 68,155 75,400 -7,245 90.39%
 In the 1Q, Crystal Communications paid past 
amounts owed in addition to current rent.  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 0 2,500 -2,500 0.0%  


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 2,345 1,000 1,345 234.47%
In the 1Q, surplus bond refinancing funds totalling 
$2057.91 were placed here.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 78,591 93,400 -14,809 84.15%


Total Income 1,801,806 2,346,400 -544,594 76.79%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
524,628 693,626 -168,998 75.64%


 


5912 · Overtime 21,081 30,772 -9,691 68.51%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 23,134 33,090 -9,956 69.91%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 27,789 37,100 -9,311 74.9%  
Total Salary 596,632 794,588 -197,956 75.09%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -2,567 -2,567 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 95,069 115,563 -20,494 82.27%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 11,466 14,021 -2,555 81.78%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 108,536 143,762 -35,226 75.5% In the 1Q, expenses reflect payment thru October.  
5931 · Retiree Health 2,094 17,324 -15,230 12.09%  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 21,146 25,746 -4,600 82.13%
In the 1Q, expenses include pymt for FY 2012-13 
Audit; in the 2Q, worker's comp was paid for the 
remainder of the year.  


Total Benefits 235,745 316,416 -80,671 74.51%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 832,377 1,111,004 -278,627 74.92%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2014 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2014 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6040-I · Internet service 1,337 1,800 -463 74.29%
6040-C · Cell Phones 1,797 2,900 -1,103 61.96%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 326 850 -524 38.41%
6040-T · Telephones 14,083 16,500 -2,417 85.35%


Total Communications 17,543 22,050 -4,507 79.56%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 25,412 21,000 4,412 121.01% (Paid for the year)


6102 · Auto/Equipment 5,170 14,000 -8,830 36.93%
Total Insurances 30,582 35,000 -4,418 87.38%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 7,777 16,000 -8,223 48.61%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 4,381 4,600 -219 95.24%
In the 2Q, the answering service was paid for 
the year.  Also, the annual phone maintenance 
contract was paid ($1450) with a fee that 
almost doubled compared to past years.


 
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 12,159 20,600 -8,441 59.02%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 5,848 7,850 -2,002 74.49%


6100 · SCADA system 898 5,000 -4,102 17.96%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 22,411 52,000 -29,589 43.1%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 36,913 45,000 -8,087 82.03%  


6143 · Generator Maintenance 0 3,200 -3,200 0.0%


In the 2Q, $2378 in unbudgeted maintenance 
was paid for repair of the office generator, all to 
be reimbursed by Ferrellgas.  (Reimbursed in 
the 3Q.)


*
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 66,069 113,050 -46,981 58.44%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,128 9,020 108 101.19%  


6303 · Claims
7,586 1,500 6,086 505.73%


In the 2Q, $7586 claim paid on behalf of 
MiCasita complex to repave parking lot after 
the Mill Street Emergency leak.  


6593 · Governmental Fees 24,582 20,650 3,932 119.04%
1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearly but higher than budgeted this year, and annual 
LAFCO costs.   


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 41,296 31,170 10,126 132.49%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
11,164 16,000 -4,836 69.77%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 4,200 8,450 -4,250 49.71%  


6461 · Office Supplies 3,238 4,000 -762 80.94%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 718 700 18 102.6%


6890 · Computers/Software 4,159 2,800 1,359 148.55%


In the 2Q, $599.80 in unbudgeted expense to 
renew District's domain name for the next 20 
years.  Also $564.44 for unbudgeted purchase 
of backup batteries for the computer and 
phone server due to electrical outage that blew 
the existing batteries.


 
6579 · Furniture 256 500 -244 51.19%


Total Office Expense 23,735 32,450 -8,715 73.14%


 Page 2 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2014 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 10,820 17,000 -6,180 63.65% In the 1Q, some chemicals were purchased for 
the year.


6880 · Tools and Equipment
2,951 6,000 -3,049 49.18%


  
6881 · Safety Equipment 463 1,500 -1,037 30.89%


Total Operating Supplies 14,234 24,500 -10,266 58.1%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,480 3,400 -920 72.94%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 9,302 13,000 -3,698 71.56%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 2,245 3,300 -1,055 68.03%
1Q expense includes annual fee for labor 
negotiator  


6610 · Legal 10,186 28,000 -17,814 36.38%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 22,400 30,000 -7,600 74.67%  


Total Professional Services 46,613 77,700 -31,087 59.99%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,316 3,300 -1,984 39.89%


6840 · Building & Warehouse 22,500 27,000 -4,500 83.33% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 23,816 30,300 -6,484 78.6%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 646 4,150 -3,504 15.56%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 17,156 26,500 -9,344 64.74%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,334 6,400 -2,066 67.72%


Total Transportation & Travel 22,136 37,050 -14,914 59.75%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 282 1,500 -1,218 18.83%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,302 1,200 102 108.46% 1Q expense includes T-shirts, purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 360 -360 0.0%
Total Uniforms 1,584 3,060 -1,476 51.76%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 74,056 90,000 -15,944 82.29%  


7321 · Propane 2,880 4,000 -1,120 71.99%  


Total Utilities 76,936 94,000 -17,064 81.85%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 376,703 520,930 -144,227 72.31%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,209,080 1,631,934 -422,854 74.09%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 4,289 21,000 -16,711 20.42%
In the 1Q, $4,289 was paid for unbudgeted roof at 
MRTP.  


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 1,714  0 1,714 100.0%
In the 1Q, $1714 was paid for unbudgeted parking lot 
lighting.


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 1,000 -1,000 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


 Page 3 of 5







FY 2013-14 
Actual


2013-14 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2013-14 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2014 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 6,003 22,000 -15,997 27.29%


Total Expense 1,215,083 1,653,934 -438,851 73.47%


Net Ordinary Income 586,723 692,466 -105,743 84.73%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 238,368 245,800 -7,432 96.98%
In the 1Q, $238,368 was transferred to CIRF for FY 
2012-13.


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 147,466 390,000 -242,534 37.81%
In the 1Q, $147,466 was transferred to conform to 
FYE 2013 policy reserve levels.  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 385,834 675,800 -289,966 57.09%


 Page 4 of 5







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45





		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown






 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2013-14 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2014 (75%)


FY 13-14
ACTUAL 


(3Q)
FY 13-14
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 4,778 27,000 -22,222 17.7%


Annual Assessment (County) 389,712 710,000 -320,288 54.9% second payment will come in 4th Quarter


Prior Year Assessment 16,916 40,000 -23,084 42.3%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 245,800 -245,800 0.0%


Interest 13,089 25,000 -11,911 52.4%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 0 390,000 -390,000 0.0%


0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


0 1,525,000 -1,525,000 0.0%


much of this will be carried over into next fiscal 
year


TOTAL REVENUE 424,495 2,987,800 -2,563,305 14.2%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 71,120 687,000 -615,880 10.4% reduced substantially because of refinancing


Cap One Revenue Bond 583,947 0 583,947 NA Refinancing amount


Total Bond Payments 655,067 687,000 -31,933 95.4%


Sum of two prior rows and shows the impact of 
the refinancing


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9% both payments made


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0% both payments made


Total Debt Payments 1,059,252 1,091,314 -32,062 97.1% Sum of all debt payments


2014 CIP 687,320 974,999 -287,679 70.5% Design: $138,036; Constr $835.964


2014 Mill Street Emergency 7,668 0 7,668


Haven't been billed by Piazza yet - contract 
amount is $39,289


2015 CIP 9,829 700,000 -690,171 1.4% Award of contract expected at June meeting


In-House Construction Projects 15,234 25,000 -9,766 60.9%


TOTAL EXPENSES 1,779,303 2,791,313 -1,012,011 63.7%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -1,354,807  196,487 -1,551,294 -689.5%


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations





		Table 2. FY14Q2






 


County Balances FY 2013-14
(from "Trial Balance by Project" Report (FAMIS 017))


$630,624.13 $135,850.00 $396,970.00 $689,303.42 $113,106.20 $0.00 $2,232,622.92 $ 24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,543,358.58


NAME


Operations + 
15% Cash 


Policy Reserve
Bldg Fund


Operating 
Policy 


Reserve (25%)


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Capital 
Improvement 


Revenue


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Private 
Placement 
Funding


INDEX 776013 776021 776039 776203 776211 776302 776401 776500 776518 776609 776617 776708


PROJECT 001 002 003 200 210 300 400 500 510 600 610 700


FP1-Jul $630,624.13 $135,850.00 $396,970.00 $689,303.42 $110,106.66 $0.00 $2,028,590.20 $24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,336,326.32


FP2-Aug $332,358.13 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $689,303.42 $107,091.69 $0.00 $2,129,848.47 $24,957.13 $24,750.00 $148,554.92 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,003,859.62


FP3-Sept $402,790.13 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $654,431.25 $103,980.35 $0.00 $2,024,329.80 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,845,703.46


FP4-Oct $484,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $103,980.35 $0.00 $2,463,401.26 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,748,400.11


FP5-Nov $574,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,755.32 $0.00 $2,355,674.18 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,727,448.00


FP6-Dec $634,629.07 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,337.47 $0.00 $2,564,523.60 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,995,879.57


FP7-Jan $681,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $36,217.50 $100,173.75 $0.00 $2,424,833.57 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,902,642.12


FP8-Feb $746,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $72,570.00 $94,872.58 $0.00 $2,107,620.29 $13,180.16 $24,750.00 $75,245.91 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,681,480.17


FP9-Mar $818,245.37 $135,850.00 $264,526.00 $72,570.00 $94,872.58 $0.00 $2,107,620.29 $1,403.19 $24,750.00 $1,936.90 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,668,394.19


FP10-Apr $0.00


FP11-May $0.00


FP12-Jun $0.00
FP 13 


(FINAL) $0.00


Beginning balances per FAMIS:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from GL101 until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


 





		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00






FY 13-14


Actual 3Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 200,000 200,000 -               
Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 407,984 407,984 -               
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 272,829 272,829 -               
Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -               


Total District Policy 1,130,813 1,130,813 -             
TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,497,024 2,565,728 931,296     


Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,366,211 1,434,915 931,296


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (776401) 2,107,620      1,694,137  413,483
OPERATING RESERVE (776039) 264,526         407,984     -143,458
OPERATIONS (776013) 818,245         200,000     618,245
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (776211) 94,873           102,757     -7,884
BUILDING (776021) 135,850       160,850     -25,000


LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 72,570           na
not included in FY14 
Budget


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 3,340           na
not included in FY14 
Budget


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


171,370         


Restricted to last payment 
for State Loans; not 
included in Total Reserves


3,497,024    2,565,728 931,296


DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (3Q) 13-14 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY14 Comments





		Table 3






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: USDA BOND REFINANCING ISSUES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the status of the United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) bond refinancing issues and provide direction to 
staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Small, if any   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In March the District was informed that USDA had issues with the partial refunding of USDA 
bonds that was executed in September 2013 by the District with concurrence of USDA staff 
involved at the time.  The main issue appears to be that the USDA accounting or payment 
system cannot accept interest only payments which is how the partial refunding was done.  The 
partial refunding was necessary because the private placement bond had a maximum of 20 
years; USDA bonds outstanding after that were left in place and interest only for the period of 
time that principal was due was included in the refinancing.  Apparently, that is now 
unacceptable  to USDA.   
 
After an exchange of letters and emails, we have learned that USDA staff have been directed to 
fix this situation in a way that best suits all parties.  The District’s placement agent, Brandis 
Tallman, has presented a proposal to USDA that would have the District paying $1,000 in 
principal annually for the next 19 years until the full principal amounts on the bonds are 
required.  This would have a minor impact on District finances and would actually have a net 
present value benefit to the District in terms of the later principal and interest payments being 
reduced.  We understand that USDA staff are considering this proposal and we expect to hear 
back prior to the May 1 meeting.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date : May 1, 2014 Subject: District Election – November, 2014 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 14-08, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting Consolidation with the 
November 4, 2014, General Election, and limiting the Statement of Qualifications to no more than 200 
words with the costs to be paid by the candidate in advance to the District Secretary. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The estimated cost to the District is $1,500.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) 
Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-exceed cost of $637 (see explanation below) based on a 200-
word, English-only statement.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


The terms of Directors Holmer, Robb-Wilder, and Schaap will expire on December 5, 2014.  The 
nomination period for interested candidates in these open Board seats -- including incumbents -- is 
July 14 – August 8, 2014.  All candidates must file a Declaration of Candidacy with the Registrar of 
Voters.   
 
If a candidate opts to file a Statement of Qualifications at their own expense, it must be paid in the 
form of a "not-to-exceed" check to the District, with the receipt filed at the same time as other 
nomination documents.  The cost of the Statement of Qualifications has changed from prior years.  It 
is now a sliding scale cost depending on how many statements are submitted for an individual office, 
as follows (for an English-only statement): 


  1 candidate requesting statement be published: $637 
  2 candidates requesting statements be published: $318 
  3 candidates requesting statements be published: $212 
  4 candidates requesting statements be published: $159  
 
All candidates, even incumbents, file a Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests with the Registrar 
of Voters at the same time as they declare candidacy. The period covered for the Form 700 is the 12 
months prior to the declaration of candidacy filing date. 
 
Attached is Resolution 14-08 for your consideration as well as the cover letter from the County 
Registrar of Voters.  The recommended action is consistent with past Board policy on the election.  
 





		The estimated cost to the District is $1,500.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-exceed cost of $637 (see explanation below) based on a 200-word, English-only statement. 




















SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: EXTENDING THE FERRELLGAS LEASE FOR THE OFFICE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-09 which authorizes the General 
Manager to send a letter to Ferrellgas, L.P., to extend the office lease for three years. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Small increase in monthly rent.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District rents its office space at 17081 Hwy 116 from Ferrellgas, L.P.  We have been at this 
location since 1999.  In 2002 the District executed Addendum #1 which added warehouse space 
to the lease, and in 2011 the District executed Addendum #2 which extended the lease for three 
years at the same lease rate ($2250 per month) and included a provision that the lease could be 
extended for three additional years with 60 days notice.  The three year extension includes a 
provision that the rent can increase annually by the Consumer Price Index with a maximum of 
2% which at the current rent would be an increase of $45 per month.  The current lease period 
is set to expire on July 31, 2014. 
 
Staff continually look around for alternative office spaces.  The current location is convenient to 
staff for field and office operations and is convenient to our customers.  The rent appears to be 
very reasonable, the terms of the lease are fair, and Ferrellgas is a good landlord, if somewhat 
distant these days.   
 
Staff recommend approval of Resolution 14-09 which directs the General Manager to send the 
60-day notice to Ferrellgas extending the lease for an additional three years.   








Resolution No. 14-08 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


PROVIDE 60 DAYS NOTICE TO EXTEND THE LEASE WITH FERRELLGAS FOR 


RENTAL OF DISTRICT OFFICE AND WAREHOUSE SPACE.   
 


 WHEREAS, the District has rented office space at 17081 Highway 116, Suite B  
from Ferrellgas, L.P., since May 1999 pursuant to the terms of the original lease dated 
May 18, 1999 (“Lease”); and  
 


WHEREAS, the District executed Addendum No. 1 to that lease in January 2002 
to add warehouse space and executed Addendum No. 2 to extend the lease to July 
2014; and 


 
WHEREAS, the original Lease and Addendum No. 2 expire on July 31, 2014; 


and 
 
WHEREAS, District staff have looked in the Water District service area for other 


possible locations for District offices and have found none that better accommodate the 
District’s needs; and  


 
WHEREAS, Addendum No. 2 allows the District to extend the lease for an 


additional three (3) years with 60 days notice with an increase in rent equal to the 
Consumer Price Index up to a maximum of 2% per year; and 


 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to provide the sixty days notice to 
allow extension of Addendum No. 2.   


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on May 1, 2014, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: PERS Unfunded Liability 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Develop a set of questions for our PERS Actuary, Barbara Ware. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the March meeting, the Board had questions regarding our unfunded liability with CalPERS 
and how it relates to the lump sum payoff the District made several years ago.  Staff has 
contacted Barbara Ware, our actuary at CalPERS.  After this Board meeting we will meet with 
her via telephone to answer to any questions we might have about PERS unfunded liability.   
 
The discussion below reviews our current PERS premiums, then discusses the how key 
events impacted our rates since we joined PERS in 2001.  Since the discussion involves use 
of PERS retirement terms, attached is a glossary provided in our most recent Annual 
Valuation Report which staff has found very useful in trying to understand the technical 
aspects of our retirement rates.  Terms in the glossary are bolded when they are first used 
in the discussion.  
 
Part 1.  Current Annual Retirement Premiums 
 
PERS breaks down annual retirement premiums into Employee Share and Employer Share.  
The District currently pays both.  Annual premium charges are expressed as a percentage of 
payroll.  The Employee Share is always a fixed 7% of payroll - it is not the focus of this 
discussion.  Our Employer Share, on the other hand, changes every year.  Currently it has 
three parts:  normal cost, unfunded liability, and side fund liability.  In FY 2014-15, 
our normal cost rate is 7.824%, our unfunded liability rate is 3.208%, and our side fund rate 
is 0.0% of payroll, for a total Employer Rate of 11.032%, plus the Employee Rate of 7%. 
 
Ideally, all benefits could be funded from the normal cost.  However, when benefits are 
increased retroactively (as they were when we joined and again when moved to a better 







PERS Unfunded Liability  2 
May 1, 2014 


plan),or there are actuarial losses1 or PERS changes either their actuarial assumptions 
or the actuarial methods , the cost to recover/catch-up shows up as an unfunded liability. 
 
 
So how has the Employer Share changed for the District over the years?  
 
Part 2.  History 
 
The District joins PERS.  The District joined the PERS 2% at 60 Plan in 2001, using the 
existing employee retirement account as an initial payment to PERS.  The prior retirement 
account covered only a small fraction (our funded ratio was just over 20%2) of the costs to 
join PERS and provide employees with PERS benefits retroactive to their hire date.  PERS 
charged 8.25% interest on the difference, and broke out the portion of our rates that would 
pay this unfunded liability.  In our first Annual Valuation Report prepared as of June 30, 
2002, the employer share broke down as follows for FY 2004-05:   
 
  Normal cost: 6.880% 
  Unfunded liability: 8.221% 
  Total Employer share: 15.101% 
 
In 2004, mindful of the high interest rate being charged on our unfunded liability, the District 
chose to make a lump sum payment of $427,885 that eliminated most of this liability.  
 
PERS implements risk pools.  Beginning with the 2005-06 year, PERS required the District 
(and all small agencies) to be part of a risk pool rather than evaluated on our own 
demographics and payroll, in the hopes of reducing large fluctuations in contribution rates.  
Our risk pool consisted of all employers in the 2% at 60 plan.  The risk pool had its own 
unfunded liability, but at the time we joined a side fund was established for us that 
accounted for the difference between our unfunded liability level versus the pool's.  Staff 
views the side fund as a post-risk pool subset of unfunded liability that is agency-specific.   
 
It should be noted here that staff also believes the side fund is a static number, subject to 
interest but not to fluctuations arising on differences between actuarial assumptions  and 
reality and/or changes to actuarial assumptions and methods3.   
 
Our employer share after becoming part of the risk pool (and after the first lump sum 
payment) broke down as follows for FY 2006-07: 
  Normal cost: 6.479% 
  Unfunded liability of the 2% at 60 pool: 0.089% 


                                                 
1 Actuarial losses (or gains) are an important and ever-changing component of unfunded liability.  Consider the 
effect on unfunded liability when retirees live longer than the actuarial assumption (demographic loss), or market 
losses like the dot.com bust or the 2008 recession wreak havoc on the actuarial assumption of market return 
(economic loss).  Staff has concluded most times the word "actuarial" is used it means PERS has used assumptions -
- either demographic or economic -- that reality will either prove too conservative or too liberal.  If too liberal 
"actuarial losses" result. 
2 As of June 30, 2012, our funded ratio was 91.2% using an actuarial valuation of assets (AVA basis).  Using a 
market value of our assets (MVA), 77.2%.  Staff has looked at the District's (later, the pool's) funded ratio over 
time.  On an MVA basis, on June 30, 2004 96.1%; June 30, 2007 110.5%; June 30, 2009 64.9%; June 30, 2012 
77.2%. 
3 PERS changes its mind about what actuarial assumptions should be and what methods to use about every two 
years.  As an example, when the District joined PERS in 2001, actuarial assumptions included an investment return 
of 8.25%, and the actuarial methodology contemplated a 3-year smoothing technique for differences between 
assumptions and reality.  Today, PERS assumes a 7.5% investment return and uses a 30-year smoothing technique.  
Each change impacts unfunded liability , either as an actuarial gain or an actuarial loss.  Since the District has joined 
PERS 13 years ago, staff believes there have been more actuarial losses than gains. 







PERS Unfunded Liability  3 
May 1, 2014 


  Side fund: .916%     
  Total Employer share: 7.484%4 
 
The District upgrades from the 2% at 60 to the 2% at 55 Plan and makes a lump 
sum payment to pay off the Side Fund.  In 2011 District negotiations with employees 
resulted in a retroctive retirement upgrade to the 2% at 55 plan.  Our move to the new risk 
pool was accompanied by a recalculation of our side fund based on the retroactivity cost of 
the enhanced benefit.  The District made a second lump sum payment in the sum of 
$230,511 in June 2011 and paid off the entire side fund.  Because the side fund is a static 
figure, staff believes that once paid off it will remain paid off unless the District chooses to 
enhance retirement benefits retroactively again sometime in the future.   
 
So why do our rates keep going up?   
 
Staff has taken a closer look at the breakdown of our employer rates since joining the 2% @ 
55 pool.  It appears that the majority of the increase is due to the pool's unfunded liability, 
not the normal cost, as shown in the table below: 
 
Year Normal Cost Rate Unfunded Liability 


Rate 
Side Fund 
Rate 


Total Employer 
Rate (% of 
payroll) 


FY 2011-12 6.622% 1.11% 0.0% 7.73% 
FY 2012-13 7.72% 1.99% 0.0% 9.71% 
FY 2013-14 8.052% 2.23% 0.0% 10.28% 
FY 2014-15 
(est.) 


7.824% 3.208% 0.0% 11.03% 


 
The table shows that the unfunded liability rate has almost tripled from FY 2011-12 to FY 
2014-15.  This reasons for this increase is a question staff has for our actuary.  Other 
questions: 
 
 What impact, if any, does the District's own demographics and payroll have on the 
employer rates we pay? 
 Do we have our own funded ratio, or just the pool's? 
 Which funded ratio do we read about in the newspapers - AVA or MVA? 
 How does the current smoothing methodology actually work? 
 What factors impact the normal cost rate? 
 
What does the future hold? 
 
Undoubtedly, change.   
 
PERS is considering more changes to the actuarial assumptions and methodology, in part 
due to the impact of PEPRA.  To gain a better understanding of proposed changes staff will 
participate in a webinar next week put on by CSDA titled "Proposed Changes to Risk 
Pooling."  CSDA hasn't put out a brochure for the webinar, but attached is background 
information for your review.  Staff is wondering how much impact this new round of changes 
will have on our rates.   
 
What questions does the Board have? 
 
                                                 
4 Net of the Phase out of Normal Cost Difference, which won't be discussed in this staff report. 







PERS Unfunded Liability  4 
May 1, 2014 


 
 

















 
Finance & Administration Committee 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System  


Agenda Item 8b April 14, 2014 


ITEM NAME:  Changes to Pension Risk Pools as a Result of Pension Reform 
 


PROGRAM:   Actuarial Office 
 


ITEM TYPE:   Action 
 


RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt changes to the risk pooling structure by 
adopting the following: 


• Changes to Board resolution ACT-96-05E regarding amortization and 
smoothing policies 


• Changes to Board resolution ACT-99-03 regarding employer contributions in 
excess of actuarially determined rate 


• Changes to Board resolution 03-03-AESD regarding the list of available risk 
pools 


• Changes to Board resolution  04-02-AESD regarding the phasing-out of 
normal cost for employers joining the risk pooling structure 


• Changes to Board resolution  05-02-AESD regarding smoothing of employer 
rate and the minimum employer contribution rate for plans with a surplus 


• Create new Board resolution ACT-14-01 regarding the allocation of pool’s 
unfunded accrued liability 


 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Last December, staff brought an information item to this Committee identifying some 
unintended consequences resulting from the interaction of the Public Employees’ 
Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) and existing Board policies on risk pools.  
Changes necessary to ensure the proper funding of these pools were identified in this 
agenda item.  Staff has completed the work necessary to implement the changes and 
is recommending Board policy modifications to implement those changes. 
 
The following summarizes the key recommended changes: 


1. Combine all active and inactive risk pools into two risk pools, one for all 
miscellaneous plans and one for all safety plans.  


2. Allocate the pool’s unfunded accrued liability proportionately to each individual 
plan based on each plan’s total liability instead of plan payroll. 


3. Collect employer contributions toward the unfunded accrued liability and Side 
Fund for plans participating in a risk pool as dollar amounts instead of 
contribution rates expressed as a percentage of payroll. 


4. Change the way existing employers will see their rate phased into the pool’s 
rate when first joining a risk pool.  







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 2 of 8 
 


5. Clarify how additional contributions sent by employers to pay down an 
unfunded accrued liability will be applied and toward which portion of their 
unfunded accrued unfunded accrued liability these additional contributions will 
first be used.  


 
The proposed changes preserve the essential pooling of risks needed to prevent 
demographic events from causing significant rate shocks for small plans.  Although 
the proposed changes will not change the amount of contribution needed to properly 
fund the risk pools, the proposed changes in the cost allocation methods will result in 
some employers having to contribute more and some employers having to contribute 
less.  Additional information is provided later in the agenda item and the attachments. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
This agenda item is not part of our strategic plan but rather is a response to changes 
in the external environment that staff is responding to as part of the ongoing workload 
of the Actuarial Office. 


 
BACKGROUND  
Risk Pooling was implemented effective with the June 30, 2003 actuarial valuations 
to protect small employers (those with less than 100 active members) against large 
fluctuations in employer contribution rates caused by unexpected demographic 
events.  


In June 2012, staff delivered a review report on risk pooling including all Board 
actuarial policies related to risk pooling, risk pooling practices, internal procedures, 
laws and regulations to assess what has worked and what can be improved.  The 
review demonstrated that the key objective of risk pooling had been realized, i.e. risk 
pooling has protected small employers against large changes in employer 
contribution rates due to unexpected demographic events.  In the report, it was noted 
that the pension reform proposals under consideration at the time could effectively 
close all existing risk pools and have a significant impact on the risk pools at 
CalPERS.  


Pension reform legislation was enacted in 2012 through the passage of PEPRA.  
PEPRA effectively closed the existing pools at that time.  As the effective date of the 
legislation was after the effective date of the June 30, 2012 actuarial valuations, staff 
did not make any changes to those valuations.  In November 2012, the Board 
approved adding two new risk pools due to the formulas created by PEPRA to be 
able to implement PEPRA on January 1, 2013.  


It is now necessary to consider the appropriate treatment of the effective closure of 
the risk pools for the “Classic” formulas – those in existence prior to the passage of 
PEPRA. 


  







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 3 of 8 
 
 


ANALYSIS  
In an open pension plan, a fundamental underlying assumption is that there will be an 
ongoing influx of new employees to replace those employees that exit due to 
retirement, disability, turnover or death.     
 
PEPRA has closed all existing active risk pools to new public employees hired on and 
after January 1, 2013 except for classic members.  When a pension plan becomes 
closed to new entrants, attrition will begin; reducing the number of active employees 
toward ultimately having a pension plan with no active employees.   
 
Several issues have arisen as a result of PEPRA for the risk pooling structure.  These 
issues were discussed in detail in an agenda item to this Committee last December.  
These issues can be categorized as funding, equity and employer contribution rate 
volatility issues. 
 
Funding issue 
Contributions for pools are collected as a contribution rate expressed as a 
percentage of payroll.  When setting the contribution rates, the Actuarial Office uses 
the payroll information from the data in the actuarial valuation.  The payroll 
information is three years prior to the fiscal year when the contribution rate will apply.  
As a result, the payroll is projected forward for three years under the assumption it 
will grow by 3% per year, the current Board approved payroll growth assumption.   
 
With the closing of the pools to new PEPRA hires in the near term, covered payroll is 
most likely going to increase at a rate lower than 3% or even decline.  When a pool 
experiences smaller payroll growth than assumed, it can lead to an underfunding of 
the plan.  Changes must be made to the current pooling structure to avoid this 
potential underfunding. 
 
Equity issue 
Under the current risk pooling structure, the existing unfunded accrued liability and 
future gains and losses are currently allocated to plans in each risk pool based on the 
payroll of the plan.  This structure works well to the extent the payroll of each plan is 
expected to grow at about the same rate.  With the closing of the pools to new hires, 
the payroll of plans will decline over time.  Since every employer participating in risk 
pooling has different demographic characteristics, their active members will retire or 
exit the plan at different times leading to some plans experiencing a faster decline in 
payroll than others.  
 
Since gains and losses of the entire pool are currently allocated based on payroll, 
plans with larger payroll will be asked to contribute more toward the pool’s unfunded 
accrued liability than plans with smaller payroll.  As the number of active members 
decline in the pool, the payments toward the unfunded liability will disproportionally 
be shifted to those plans having the largest number of remaining active members 







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 4 of 8 
 


resulting in an inequitable allocation of costs.  To address this equity issue, changes 
are needed on how costs are allocated within each risk pool. 
 
Employer Contribution Rate Volatility issue 
When PEPRA was enacted, it closed all classic active pools to new PEPRA hires. 
The unfunded accrued liability for the classic pools remained unchanged. Under 
current Board policies, payments to the amortization of the unfunded accrued 
liabilities and side funds are expressed as a percentage of payroll. If the unfunded 
accrued liability decreases over time as employers pay down the unfunded accrued 
liability, employer contribution rate volatility will eventually increase to an alarming 
level. This is going to be difficult for employers to budget and could lead to severe 
hardship for some employers.   
 
Possible Solutions 
The Actuarial Office studied two alternatives for the future of risk pooling to address 
these issues without sacrificing the considerable benefit to contribution rate stability 
for smaller employers that risk pooling provides.   
 
Alternative 1 
Alternative 1 includes keeping the current pooling structure of 9 closed active pools, 1 
inactive pool and 2 open active PEPRA pools and modifying current funding and 
amortization methods to address the funding and equity issues with the least amount 
of change to our current pooling structure.  Even though the payroll of employer is still 
open and can be expected to grow over time, the same is not true of the groups 
covered under the classic formula. 
 
The changes proposed under alternative 1 will result in almost all pooled employers 
having to contribute more in the near term.  We expect that about 90% of the 
Miscellaneous plans in the classic risk pools will experience employer rate increases 
between 0-3% of payroll and about 75% of the Safety plans will experience increases 
of 2-5% of payroll.  In addition to the contribution increases, a change of the 
allocation of the pool’s unfunded accrued liability will further increase or decrease 
individual employer contribution rates.   
 
Under this alternative, we will need to monitor the funding of each risk pool carefully.  
It is possible that we may have to modify our funding approach to reflect the 
demographics of the closed groups which would further increase contributions.   
 
Alternative 1 is not the preferred approach.  More details on Alternative 1 can be 
found in agenda item 7b to this Committee last December.  
 
Proposed Solution - Alternative 2 
Staff reviewed another alternative which is combining all pools into two pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups.  This is the approach that staff 
is recommending and requires structural changes.   By combining all pooled plans 







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 5 of 8 
 


into two risk pools, the payroll of the risk pools and employers within the pools can be 
expected to increase at the assumed 3% annual growth, addressing some of the 
issues that resulted from having a declining active population in the pool.  Therefore, 
we will be able to keep our current level percentage of pay amortization schedule to 
avoid the necessity of immediate increases to employer contributions. 
 
In addition to combining all exiting risk pools into two risk pools, staff is 
recommending that we start collecting employer contributions toward unfunded 
accrued liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of contribution rates.  
Implementing this change will address the funding issue that would arise from the 
declining population under the classic formula.   This will result in a major change in 
how contributions are collected from employers.  Anecdotally, employers seem to be 
supportive of this approach.  Several employers have approached CalPERS over the 
last several months proposing that we no longer collect contributions for the unfunded 
accrued liability as a percentage of payroll but rather invoice them for the amount 
needed each year to pay down the unfunded accrued liability. The normal cost 
contribution would continue to be expressed as a percentage of payroll. 
 
Staff is also recommending changes to the method to allocate cost to plans in risk 
pools.  Staff’s recommendation is to allocate the pool’s unfunded accrued liability to 
each individual plan within the pool based on the plan’s total liability instead of based 
on the plan’s payroll.   This is a change for which many pooled employers have been 
requesting.  Additionally, many pooled employers have been asking for the ability to 
pay down their share of the pool’s unfunded accrued liability.  This is not possible 
unless we allocate the unfunded accrued liability of the pool to each employer on an 
annual basis.  Making this change will address the equity issue and allow employers 
to pay down their share of the pool’s unfunded accrued liability.  Although the 
recommended changes to the cost allocation method will not change the amount of 
contribution needed to properly fund the risk pools, the changes in the cost allocation 
methods will result in some employers having to contribute more and some 
employers having to contribute less.   An analysis performed by staff showed that 
almost half of the plans will see a change – positive or negative of less than 1% of 
payroll.  About 80% of employers will experience changes between -3% to +3% of 
payroll.  However, there are a few plans with large retiree to active ratios that will 
experience increases in excess of 3% of payroll. See Attachment 1 for a distribution 
of the expected impact on employer rates. 
 
This solution will require a significant effort to program and design the required 
database changes to our existing system.  If adopted by the Board, these changes 
will be reflected in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations that will be performed later 
this summer and will be used to set the employer contribution rates for fiscal year 
2015-16.   
 







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 6 of 8 
 


To implement these changes, modifications are necessary to five existing Board 
policies as is the creation of one new policy.  The policies being modified or created 
are the following: 


• Board resolution ACT-96-05E: modified to ensure amortization and smoothing 
policies properly reflect the proposed changes.  See Attachment 2a for a copy 
of the Board resolution with the proposed changes highlighted in the redline 
version and Attachment 2b for the final recommend version. 


• Board resolution ACT-99-03: modified to reflect employers with pooled plans 
will be asked to contribute both a rate and a dollar amount to fund their plans.    
See Attachment 3a for a copy of the Board resolution with the proposed 
changes highlighted in the redline version and Attachment 3b for the final 
recommend version. 


• Board resolution 03-03-AESD: modified to combine existing pools and reflect 
that only two risk pools will be administered going forward for employers that 
contract with CalPERS.  See Attachment 4a for a copy of the Board resolution 
with the proposed changes highlighted in the redline version and Attachment 
4b for the final recommend version. 


• Board resolution 04-02-AESD: modified to properly reflect that normal cost of 
plans will need to be taken into account when phasing in an existing plan 
joining a risk pool for the first time.  See Attachment 5a for a copy of the Board 
resolution with the proposed changes highlighted in the redline version and 
Attachment 5b for the final recommend version. 


• Board resolution 05-02-AESD: minor changes to ensure consistency with the 
proposed changes.   See Attachment 6a for a copy of the Board resolution 
with the proposed changes highlighted in the redline version and Attachment 
6b for the final recommend version. 


• Board resolution ACT-14-01: new policy being created to establish the process 
used to allocate the pool’s unfunded accrued liability to each plan on an 
annual basis.  See Attachment 7 for a copy of the proposed new Board 
resolution. 
 


 
BUDGET AND FISCAL IMPACTS  
This item was not anticipated in the strategic or business plan and has not been built 
into the budget.  Given the time constraint to implement the changes outlined in this 
agenda item, it is anticipated that any work associated with the issues described 
herein will have to be completed with existing staff and absorbed within current 
budgets although this may be revisited in a future agenda item.  Unless action is 
taken, contributions from employers will have to be accelerated and impose 
additional strain on employers’ budgets. 
 


  







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 7 of 8 
 


BENEFITS/RISKS  
As stated earlier, several issues have arisen as a result of PEPRA for the risk pooling 
structure.  These issues can be categorized as funding, equity and employer 
contribution rate volatility issues. 
 
Staff is recommending changes to address some of these issues.  If the Board were 
to not adopt changes to the risk pooling changes, the issues identified in this agenda 
item would remain in place and could have a drastic impact in a few years. 
 
Staff presented two alternatives to address some of these risks.  Alternative 1 has 
the benefit of being the easiest one to implement from a perspective of system and 
program changes needed.  However, it still does not eliminate all of the issues 
identified.  The risk in implementing alternative 1 is that first it would result in all 
pooled employers having to pay more at a time when budgets are already strained.  
In addition, is not likely to fully eliminate the funding, equity and employer contribution 
rate volatility issues we are facing.  This alternative may necessitate future changes 
to our funding approach to reflect the demographics of the closed classic groups 
which would further increase employer contributions. As stated earlier, this is not the 
preferred alternative.   
 
Alternative 2 is the solution recommended by staff to address the issues listed above.  
Alternative 2 preserves the essential pooling of risks needed to prevent demographic 
events from causing significant rate shocks for small plans.  This alternative is more 
complicated to implement and will require significant changes to systems, policies 
and procedures.  Under this alternative, there is no overall increase in employer 
contributions although some employers will have higher contributions and some 
lower. The risk of not implementing this approach would be that the funding, equity 
and employer contribution rate volatility issues would remain in place and would 
require some action in the future.  The risk in implementing this change is some 
employers will see increases in contributions at a time when budgets are already 
strained. 
 
Another option that was not considered as viable was the elimination of risk pools at 
CalPERS and returning each plan to a stand-alone basis.  This path would 
reintroduce the risk of large increases in contribution rates caused by demographic 
events for small plans that was eliminated with the creation of risk pools.  Eliminating 
risk pools would re-introduce risks that have been eliminated by the creation of risk 
pools and impact contribution rates in a similar fashion to how Alternative 2 is 
expected to impact rates. 
 
 


  







 
 
Agenda Item 8b 
Finance & Administration Committee 
April 14, 2014  
Page 8 of 8 
 


ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1 – Estimated Impact of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 on Employer 


Contribution Rates 
Attachment 2a – Board Resolution ACT-96-05E  - Redline Version 
Attachment 2b – Board Resolution ACT-96-05E  - Clean Version 
Attachment 3a – Board Resolution ACT-99-03  - Redline Version 
Attachment 3b – Board Resolution ACT-99-03  - Clean Version 
Attachment 4a – Board Resolution 03-03-AESD  - Redline Version 
Attachment 4b – Board Resolution 03-03-AESD  - Clean Version 
Attachment 5a – Board Resolution 04-02-AESD  - Redline Version 
Attachment 5b – Board Resolution 04-02-AESD  - Clean Version 
Attachment 6a – Board Resolution 05-02-AESD  - Redline Version 
Attachment 6b – Board Resolution 05-02-AESD  - Clean Version 
Attachment 7 – Board Resolution ACT-14-01   
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


_________________________________ 
DAVID LAMOUREUX 
Deputy Chief Actuary 


Actuarial Office 
 
 
 


_________________________________ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 


Chief Actuary 





		California Public Employees’ Retirement System

		Agenda Item 8b April 14, 2014

		Item Name:  Changes to Pension Risk Pools as a Result of Pension Reform

		Program:   Actuarial Office

		Item Type:   Action

		Recommendation

		EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

		This agenda item is not part of our strategic plan but rather is a response to changes in the external environment that staff is responding to as part of the ongoing workload of the Actuarial Office.






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-H 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A SALES CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 17448 RIVER LANE, 
GUERNEVILLE, WITH THE RUSSIAN RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-10 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute a sales contract for District property at 17448 River Lane, 
Guerneville, with the Russian River Recreation and Park District (RRR&PD), contingent 
upon appropriate easement or covenant to keep the parcel available for public purposes 
and with public access. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Sales price will be discussed in closed session.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The parcel at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville is owned by the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District), had a historical use at the site of a well, and the well has been abandoned for some 
time.  The District has no future use of the parcel.  This parcel is part of the river access for the 
northern Vacation Beach area neighborhood.  The District Lands Strategy suggested exploring 
the transfer of unneeded parcels with river access or other recreational possibilities with local 
recreation and park districts or other appropriate public agencies.  This parcel was one of the 
many parcels on the unneeded District property list that was offered to the school district and to 
the County affordable housing agency back in 2010, as required by State law.  None of these 
agencies expressed interest.  
 
The District has been in discussions regarding the sale of this particular parcel with the RRR&PD 
for some time.   Both districts have had the parcel appraised with the most recent done by the 
RRR&PD in November 2013.  In this past year the District and RRR&PD have reached general 
agreement on the sales price.  District Board Members have expressed concern that an 
appropriate easement, covenant, or other appropriate legal mechanism be included in the sale 
to ensure that the parcel remains in public use and for public purposes in perpetuity.   
 
Transfer of the parcel to the RRR&PD with the appropriate easement or covenant will put the 
parcel in control by a local public agency that includes in its mission public access to the Russian 
River.  The sales price we have negotiated is fair considering the restrictions put on the 
property.  The easement or covenant finally developed will ensure its use and availability by the 
public in perpetuity.   
   
 








Resolution No. 14-10 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


EXECUTE THE SALE OF THE PARCEL AT 17448 RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE 


TO THE RUSSIAN RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT WITH AN 


APPROPRIATE LEGAL MECHANISM TO ENSURE THE PARCEL REMAINS 


AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC AND PUBLIC ACCESS.   
 


 WHEREAS, the District owns the parcel at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville, CA 
95446; and  
 


WHEREAS, in 2010 the District developed a strategy for  unneeded parcels that 
encouraged transfer of river access parcels to local recreation and park districts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District and Russian River Recreation and Park District 


(RRR&PD) have been in discussions and negotiations about the transfer of this parcel to 
RRR&PD for some time; and 


 
WHEREAS, both districts have had the parcel appraised with the most recent 


done by the RRR&PD in November 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District Directors have expressed a concern that the parcel have 


legal restrictions that ensure that the parcel will remain available for public purposes and 
have public access in perpetuity; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District and RRR&PD are in discussions on the exact nature of 


the legal restrictions that will ensure this; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District and the RRR&PD have reached a price agreement  


which is fair considering the limitations imposed on the property; and 
 


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the sales contract with 
RRR&PD for the parcel at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville, at a sales price of _______ 
with the contingency that appropriate legal restrictions be included and/or recorded as 
part of the terms of sale to provide for public access and guarantee that the parcel will 
be available for public purposes in perpetuity.   


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on May 1, 2014, by the following vote. 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 







Resolution 14-10. Sales Contract for 17448 River Lane 2 
May 1, 2014 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 1, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in March was 17,053 units (39.1 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 53.8 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (41.1 AF and 57.1 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
stayed flat (approximately 25%), compared to the prior month, for the system as a whole 
as shown in Figure 1.   


 
3. Leaks:  In March we had 9 total leaks and spent 45 man-hours on them.   Those are fewer 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and fewer man-hours 
compared to March one year ago (8 leaks, 57 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and 
main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.   


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall (Drought): April has been fairly dry (as of the date of this report).  


We continue to stay a track similar to 2009 which was also a dry year.  Lake Mendocino 
has improved to approximately half full (60% of average for this time of year) but that still 
isn’t a great situation for this time of year.   We intend to participate in any regional 
drought response – information provided by the Sonoma County Water Agency is on our 
website or provided by links on the website to the information.   The drought has been 
softened a bit for this area but it’s still a serious situation.  The rainy season is typically 
over in March but some late season rainfall will really help out; it’s happened in the past 
(namely 2009).         


 
5. 2014 CIP/2015 CIP:   The 2014 CIP is completed and we were hoping to have it on the 


agenda for a Notice of Completion, but the contractor did not get his paperwork in on time.  
We will be looking to have the NOC on the June agenda.  Design for the 2015 CIP (Old 
Monte Rio Road) has been slower than anticipated, but we should have this project ready 
for award of contract at the June meeting.             


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in April.  The 


current Direct Install Program accounting numbers are as follows: 31 customers have had 
49 direct install toilet installations completed, 3 customers have not acted after being 
notified they are approved for installation and 11 previously approved customers are on a 
wait list.   A letter was sent to Grant Davis thanking him for the Sonoma County Water 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
May 1, 2014 
 


Agency support for the toilet rebate/direct install programs and other water conservation 
program support.                    


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were 3 in-house projects reported for April.  


Staff replaced a 2 inch gate valve on Wright Drive (10.5 man-hours), replaced a service on 
Wright Drive (22.5 man-hours), and replaced 325 feet of 2 inch line on Gabes Rock Road 
(123 man-hours).   


 
8. Russian River County Sanitary District Spill:   A report by the Sonoma County Water 


Agency on the February 13 spill has been emailed to you.  North Coast Regional Board staff 
passed this report on to me and said that the Regional Board staff is considering 
recommending an enforcement action regarding this incident.   


   
9. Gantt Chart:   May in the Gantt Chart shows approval of the Budget and award of the 


contract for the 2015 CIP – that’s discussed above.  


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
May 1, 2014 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
cto


be
r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


2013


Dryest (1977)


2014


-







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP
        2014 CIP Design
        2014 CIP Award of Contract
        2014 CIP Construction Starts
        2015 CIP Design
        2015 CIP Award of Contract
        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-14
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: May 1, 2014 



